South Cambridgeshire Hall
Cambourne Business Park
Cambourne

Cambridge

CB23 6EA

t: 03450 450 500
f: 01954 713149
www.scambs.gov.uk

4 July 2018

South
Cambridgeshire
District Council

To: Chairman — Councillor Grenville Chamberlain
Vice-Chairman — Councillor Brian Milnes
Members of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee — Councillors Ruth Betson,
Anna Bradnam, Dr. Martin Cahn, Sarah Cheung Johnson, Gavin Clayton,
Graham Cone, Dr. Claire Daunton, Dr. Douglas de Lacey, Bill Handley,
Peter McDonald, Dawn Percival and Eileen Wilson

Quorum: 5

There is a pre-meeting session at 5pm for members of the Committee only, to plan their
lines of enquiry. This will take place in the Monkfield Room

Dear Councillor

You are invited to attend the next meeting of SCRUTINY AND OVERVIEW COMMITTEE, which
will be held in the SWANSLEY ROOM, GROUND FLOOR on THURSDAY, 12 JULY 2018 at

6.00 p.m.

Members are respectfully reminded that when substituting on committees, subcommittees, and
outside or joint bodies, Democratic Services must be advised of the substitution in advance of
the meeting. It is not possible to accept a substitute once the meeting has started. Council

Standing Order 4.3 refers.

Yours faithfully
Beverly Agass
Chief Executive

The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the
community, access to its agendas and minutes. If you have any
specific needs, please let us know, and we will do what we can to

help you.
AGENDA
PAGES
1. Apologies
To receive apologies for absence from committee members.
2. Declarations of Interest
3. Minutes of Previous Meeting 1-6

To authorise the Chairman to sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 21

June 2018 as a correct record.

Democratic Services Contact Officer: Victoria Wallace 03450 450 500 democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk



Public Questions
Scrutiny and Overview Committee's Outline Working Agreement 7-8

Response to consultation on Pre-Submission Draft Uttlesford Local 9-38
Plan (Reg 19)

Work programme 39-52
For the committee to consider its work programme.

Monitoring the Executive

Scrutiny monitors are invited to report to the Committee regarding any
meetings of the Executive attended since the last meeting and specifically
raise any issues challenged and the result and/or issues where the
Committee could add further value.

To Note the Dates of Future Meetings
For the committee to agree the dates and times of its future meetings.
Meeting dates and provisional times for the 2018/19 municipal year are:

Tuesday 14 August 2018 at 6pm
Tuesday 18 September 2018 at 6pm
Thursday 18 October 2018 at 6pm
Thursday 22 November 2018 at 6pm
Tuesday 18 December 2018 at 6pm
Thursday 29 January 2018 at 6pm
Wednesday 20 February 2018 at 6pm
Thursday 21 March 2018 at 6pm
Tuesday 16 April 2018 at 6pm

Exclusion of Press and Public

The law allows Councils to consider a limited range of issues in private session without
members of the Press and public being present. Typically, such issues relate to
personal details, financial and business affairs, legal privilege and so on. In every
case, the public interest in excluding the Press and Public from the meeting room must
outweigh the public interest in having the information disclosed to them. The following
statement will be proposed, seconded and voted upon.

"l propose that the Press and public be excluded from the meeting during the
consideration of the following item number(s) ..... in accordance with Section 100(A)
(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that, if present, there would be
disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph(s) ..... of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A of the Act.”

If exempt (confidential) information has been provided as part of the agenda, the Press
and public will not be able to view it. There will be an explanation on the website
however as to why the information is exempt.



OUR LONG-TERM VISION

South Cambridgeshire will continue to be the best place to live, work and study in the country.
Our district will demonstrate impressive and sustainable economic growth. Our residents will
have a superb quality of life in an exceptionally beautiful, rural and green environment.

OUR VALUES
We will demonstrate our corporate values in all our actions. These are:
. Working Together
. Integrity
. Dynamism

. Innovation




GUIDANCE NOTES FOR VISITORS TO SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE HALL

Notes to help those people visiting the South Cambridgeshire District Council offices

While we try to make sure that you stay safe when visiting South Cambridgeshire Hall, you also have a
responsibility for your own safety, and that of others.

Security

When attending meetings in non-public areas of the Council offices you must report to Reception, sign in,
and at all times wear the Visitor badge issued. Before leaving the building, please sign out and return the
Visitor badge to Reception.

Public seating in meeting rooms is limited. For further details contact Democratic Services on 03450 450
500 or e-mail democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk

Emergency and Evacuation
In the event of a fire, a continuous alarm will sound. Leave the building using the nearest escape route;
from the Council Chamber or Mezzanine viewing gallery this would be via the staircase just outside the
door. Go to the assembly point at the far side of the staff car park opposite the staff entrance
e Do not use the lifts to leave the building. If you are unable to use stairs by yourself, the
emergency staircase landings have fire refuge areas, which give protection for a minimum of 1.5
hours. Press the alarm button and wait for help from Council fire wardens or the fire brigade.
e Do not re-enter the building until the officer in charge or the fire brigade confirms that it is safe to
do so.

First Aid
If you feel unwell or need first aid, please alert a member of staff.

Access for People with Disabilities

We are committed to improving, for all members of the community, access to our agendas and minutes.
We try to take all circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, please let us know, and
we will do what we can to help you. All meeting rooms are accessible to wheelchair users. There are
disabled toilet facilities on each floor of the building. Infra-red hearing assistance systems are available in
the Council Chamber and viewing gallery. To use these, you must sit in sight of the infra-red transmitter
and wear a ‘neck loop’, which can be used with a hearing aid switched to the ‘T’ position. If your hearing
aid does not have the ‘T’ position facility then earphones are also available and can be used
independently. You can get both neck loops and earphones from Reception.

Toilets
Public toilets are available on each floor of the building next to the lifts.

Recording of Business and Use of Mobile Phones

We are open and transparent about how we make decisions. We allow recording, filming and photography
at Council, Cabinet and other meetings, which members of the public can attend, so long as proceedings
at the meeting are not disrupted. We also allow the use of social media during meetings to bring Council
issues to the attention of a wider audience. To minimise disturbance to others attending the meeting,
please switch your phone or other mobile device to silent / vibrate mode.

Banners, Placards and similar items

You are not allowed to bring into, or display at, any public meeting any banner, placard, poster or other
similar item. Failure to do so, will result in the Chairman suspending the meeting until such items are
removed.

Disturbance by Public

If a member of the public interrupts proceedings at a meeting, the Chairman will warn the person
concerned. If they continue to interrupt, the Chairman will order their removal from the meeting room. If
there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the public, the Chairman may call
for that part to be cleared. The meeting will be suspended until order has been restored.

Smoking

Since 1 July 2008, South Cambridgeshire District Council has operated a Smoke Free Policy. No one is
allowed to smoke at any time within the Council offices, or in the car park or other grounds forming part of
those offices.

Food and Drink
Vending machines and a water dispenser are available on the ground floor near the lifts at the front of the
building. You are not allowed to bring food or drink into the meeting room.


mailto:democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 3

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee held on
Thursday, 21 June 2018 at 6.00 p.m.

PRESENT: Councillor Grenville Chamberlain — Chairman
Councillor Brian Milnes — Vice-Chairman
Councillors: Ruth Betson Dr. Martin Cahn
Sarah Cheung Johnson Gavin Clayton
Graham Cone Dr. Claire Daunton
Dr. Douglas de Lacey Bill Handley
Peter McDonald Dawn Percival
Eileen Wilson Steve Hunt
Officers: Victoria Wallace Democratic Services Officer
Mike Hill Health and Environmental Services Director
Caroline Hunt Planning Policy Manager
Richard May Policy and Performance Manager
Kathrin John Democratic Services Team Leader
1. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Anna Bradnam. Councillor Steve
Hunt was present as a substitute for Councillor Bradnam.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on 6 March 2018 were agreed as a correct record.
PUBLIC QUESTIONS

No public questions had been received.

CHANGING APPROACH TO SCRUTINY AND OVERVIEW

The committee would be moving to pre-decision scrutiny. The Chairman referred to the
training the committee had undertaken earlier that day, which had given some insight
into this. The committee needed to identify a work plan going forward and areas for
scrutiny would need to be prioritised. The Chairman was keen for the committee to
remain non-political. The Chairman suggested the committee look at the Joint Strategic
Needs Assessment to look at how this related to South Cambridgeshire and its services.
The committee was informed that the Council was looking at recruitment of a Scrutiny
Officer.

A group working agreement would be developed, which would be added to the agenda
for the next meeting for discussion.

Page 1



Scrutiny and Overview Committee Thursday, 21 June 2018

6. 2017-18 YEAR END POSITION STATEMENT ON FINANCE, PERFORMANCE AND
RISK

The Policy and Performance Manager presented the report which provided an update on
the Council’s financial position and performance for the 2017-2018 year end. He
explained that the Strategic Risk Register was under review.

The Deputy Leader of the Council was present and informed the committee that the new
administration would be reviewing the Corporate Plan and the measures against which
the Council’s performance was measured.

The Committee discussed the report:

o Concern was raised regarding the tone of the report which focussed on successes
rather than problems. More in depth analysis of areas of concern was requested,
focussing on actions to improve performance.

e Information was requested regarding whether the new housing and homelessness
officers referred to in the report had been appointed and what the Council had been
doing to help ensure a smooth implementation of Universal Credit. Information about
the skill mix of these staff was also requested. The committee was informed that the
Council was very aware of the risk of the implementation of Universal Credit, which
was due to be implemented in October 2018.

e With reference to the number of unfilled vacancies and sickness levels, concern was
raised that economic savings were being made by the Council at the expense of
staff, staffing levels and the performance of the Council. In response to this the
committee was informed that the Council had struggled to recruit to a number of
service areas, such as Planning. Despite this the Council had continued to deliver a
service. The skills shortage in Planning was a nationwide issue. The committee was
assured that the Council did not have a policy to not fill vacancies in order to make
financial savings and that staff sickness levels were not worsening.

¢ Inresponse to a query regarding the reasons for being unable to recruit planning
officers, the committee was informed that the high cost of living in South
Cambridgeshire was a contributing factor, as was the general shortage of planning
officers across the country. The Council was continuing to find ways to recruit
planning officers.

¢ The committee was informed that all staff leaving the organisation were given the
opportunity for an exit interview.

e It was suggested that the committee could look at recruitment challenges as part of
its work programme.

e The scoring of risks in the Strategic Risk Register was discussed. Concern was
raised that the net score of risks could be masking significant problems, with some
risks rated as amber when there was clearly a problem. In response to this the
committee was informed that the net score took into account the actions taken to
mitigate the risk. The committee was assured that the amber rating reflected that the
risk was significant.

e Regarding mitigations in relation to recruitment and retention, the committee was
informed that all mitigating factors had either been implemented or were in the
process of being implemented, but the Council was still struggling to recruit.

o The committee was informed that staff turnover was at a healthy level; around 10%.
Turnover did not relate directly to underspends arising from ongoing staff vacancies,
as in most cases the Council was able to successfully recruit to positions.

e The committee was informed that the £8.7 million allocated to improving public
transport links between Cambourne, Cambridge and nearby villages as referred to in
the Corporate Plan, was from Section106 contributions.

e Regarding reference made in the Corporate Plan to the A14 and A428, committee

Page 2



Scrutiny and Overview Committee Thursday, 21 June 2018

members raised concern regarding the Girton Interchange remaining a single lane.
The Deputy Leader informed the committee that this was part of the wider
discussions with Highways England on the A428, which the Leader of the Council
had been working on.

¢ Inresponse to a suggestion that a Key Performance Indicator (KPI) be added
regarding enforcement in relation to Travellers, the committee was informed that KPI
ES406 measured the percentage of major non-compliances resolved.

e Concern was raised that the provision of electric vehicle charging points was not a
requirement for new homes. In response to this the Deputy Leader advised that
there was no mechanism to oblige developers to provide electric vehicle charging
points, but the next Local Plan would start to be developed next year and the
inclusion of issues such as this could be considered.

e The vacancy figures across the whole of the Planning Shared Service were
requested. The committee was informed that some vacancies in the Planning service
were filled by consultants.

¢ The demand on baliliff and legal services in dealing with illegal Traveller
encampments was suggested as a potential future area of work for the committee.

o Regarding the underspend in ICT Development detailed in Appendix C of the report,
members queried whether spending more on improved ICT could have helped with
the staffing issues if staff had been struggling to do carry out their jobs due to ICT
issues. An update on the short term plans for improvements to ICT was suggested
as an item for the next committee meeting. Regarding underspend, the Deputy
Leader clarified that any rollovers were due to projects that were ongoing so any
underspend was likely to be spent as the project progressed.

The Scrutiny and Overview Committee NOTED the report.

7. CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND PETERBOROUGH MINERALS AND WASTE LOCAL PLAN
- PRELIMINARY DRAFT CONSULTATION RESPONSE

The Deputy Leader of the Council presented the report which sought agreement to
submit a response to the Minerals and Waste Local Plan: Preliminary Draft Consultation,
in accordance with the points set out in the report. This would be a joint consultation
response with Cambridge City Council, the deadline for which was 26 June 2018. The
Planning Policy Manager presented the key issues.

In response to a query, the Director of Health and Environmental Services clarified that
South Cambridgeshire District Council collected waste and the County Council disposed
of this. Based on what the District Council collected, the recycling rate was 49%.

The committee was informed that there were ambitions to have significant development
including commercial, employment and residential, on the Cambridge water recycling
centre site at Milton, which was allocated as a major brownfield site. A site for the
relocation of the water recycling plant would need to be identified. Once this was done,
the relocation of the site also presented development opportunities for the surrounding
area, which would no longer be impacted by odour issues from the water recycling
centre.

A concern was raised that the site assessment did not raise the issue of sustainability
and it was suggested that more information needed to be included to make sure plans
were ecologically sustainable as well as economically sustainable. In response to this
the Planning Policy Manager clarified that Draft Policy 1 as referred to in the report,
addressed sustainability. The committee requested that this Policy be sent to Councillor
de Lacey to read.

Page 3



Scrutiny and Overview Committee Thursday, 21 June 2018

10.

Subject to discussions between Councillor de Lacey and the Planning Policy Manager,
the Scrutiny and Overview Committee ENDORSED the report.

TASK AND FINISH GROUP

The Chairman informed the committee that the Leader of the Council had requested a
task and finish group be set up to consider how the Council could facilitate SME
businesses to procure work on its behalf in a cost effective, reasonable and proportional
manner and what the barriers were to SMEs procuring Council contracts. The
Democratic Services Team Leader referring to the Council’s Constitution informed the
committee that members of the Executive could only participate on a Scrutiny task and
finish group in an advisory capacity. Councillors Grenville Chamberlain, Sarah Cheung
Johnson and Brian Milnes would form this group. It was anticipated that one or two
meetings taking place in September, would be sufficient to investigate this issue.

APPOINTMENT OF SCRUTINY MONITORS

The Scrutiny and Overview Committee appointed the following Scrutiny Monitors to
Portfolios:

Portfolio Scrutiny Monitor

Leader Grenville Chamberlain

Deputy Leader Cllr Graham Cone

Housing ClIr Claire Daunton

Environmental Services & Licensing ClIr Sarah Cheung Johnson

Planning ClIr Brian Milnes

Customer Service & Business ClIr Peter McDonald

Improvement

Finance Clir Bill Handley (provisional, to be
confirmed)

Guidance on the role of Scrutiny Monitors was requested. The Chairman suggested this
be discussed at the committee’s next meeting alongside the work programme. The
Chairman asked members to consider topics they would like the committee to consider
so that these could be prioritised.

It was queried how opposition spokespeople for a Portfolio could find out what was
happening and what decisions were to be taken. The Deputy Leader explained that it
was anticipated that the majority of decision making would be through the Executive via
the Scrutiny and Overview Committee, however the Executive was in the process of
finalising the decision making process. The Chairman welcomed decisions being
presented to the Scrutiny and Overview Committee before they were taken by the
Executive. The committee’s attention was drawn to the Council’'s Notice of Key and Non-
Key Decisions, which was published on the Council’s website each month. He
suggested the committee keep informed of upcoming decisions through this and by
talking to officers and the Portfolio Holders.

WORK PROGRAMME

The Chairman referred the committee to the Council’s Notice of Key and Non Key
Decisions. The Chairman and Vice Chairman would draft a work programme which
would be brought to the committee’s July 2018 meeting. Members indicated their
agreement with this approach.

The issue of rural crime was raised, which members would welcome the Police and

Page 4



Scrutiny and Overview Committee Thursday, 21 June 2018

11.

Crime Commissioner attending to discuss this with the committee.
TO NOTE THE DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

The committee agreed the next meeting would take place on Thursday 12 July 2018 at
6pm. Subsequent meeting dates and times would be discussed at this meeting.

The Meeting ended at 7.40 p.m.

Page 5



This page is left blank intentionally.

Page 6



J1

Agenda Item &

South
Cambridgeshire
District Council

REPORT TO: Scrutiny and Overview Committee 12 July 2018

Scrutiny and Overview Committee Outline Working Agreement
Purpose
1. For the Scrutiny and Overview Committee to agree its Outline Working Agreement.
Recommendations

2. It is recommended that the Scrutiny and Overview Committee agrees the Outline
Working Agreement set out below.

3. Scrutiny and Overview Committee Outline Working Agreement

e Monthly meetings in accordance with draft timetable.
e Aim to conduct business within 2 hours.
e To be decided day time or evening meetings? Vote to be taken on this

o Evening meetings more convenient for working councillors and public
to attend.

¢ Completely non-political — working together for the benefit of SCDC residents.
e Chair and Vice Chair available for discussions between meetings.
e 3 minutes maximum time to speak.
e Sequence of speakers recorded by Vice Chairman.
e Please refrain from using jargon or acronyms.
e Prior to vote Chairman will summarise debate.
e Pre-meet for all members 1 hour prior to start of meeting:
o Democratic Services in attendance
e Key lines of enquiry established.
e Sequence of questions determined.
e Evaluation of outcomes and recommendations.
¢ Chairman or Vice Chairman to report to Cabinet.
e At least 1 meeting per year in a suitable Parish facility.

ClIr Grenville Chamberlain
Chairman, Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Page 7



This page is left blank intentionally.



Agenda Iltem 6

South
Cambridgeshire
District Council

REPORT TO: Scrutiny and Overview Committee 12 July 2018
Cabinet 26 July 2018

LEAD OFFICER: Stephen Kelly — Joint Director for Planning and Economic
Development

Response to consultation on Pre-Submission Draft Uttlesford Local Plan (Reg 19)
Purpose

To consider the contents of the Pre-Submission Uttlesford Local Plan (Regulation 19)
consultation as they affect South Cambridgeshire and agree an appropriate
response.

This is a key decision because following this formal stage in the preparation of the
Uttlesford Local Plan, Uttlesford District Council proposes that the Pre-Submission
Draft be submitted for examination and therefore representations made at this stage
will be considered by the independent Inspector. The report addresses the potential
effects of the Uttlesford Local Plan, including a proposed new settlement to the north
east of Great Chesterford, on adjoining wards within South Cambridgeshire. It was
first published in the June 2018 Forward Plan.

Recommendations

It is recommended that this Council make representations on the Uttlesford Local
Plan Regulation 19 consultation consistent with this report and particularly
paragraphs 22-58 of this report.

Reasons for Recommendations

To respond to the consultation from Uttlesford District Council (UDC) having regard to
the content of their draft Local Plan and its implications for South Cambridgeshire.

Executive Summary

Uttlesford District Council is consulting on their Pre-Submission Local Plan
(Regulation 19) between the 25" June and 5.00pm on the 13" August 2018. This is
the Local Plan that they intend to submit to the Planning Inspectorate for examination
and only representations made to this consultation will be taken into account by the
Planning Inspector. If representations are not made at this time there will be no
further opportunities to do so unless Uttlesford decide to repeat their Regulation 19
consultation. Importantly only those making objections to this consultation have the
opportunity to ask to appear at the examination and officers propose to include such
a request in our response. This Council could subsequently decide to rely only on its
written representations or to withdraw some or all of them as circumstances dictate.

The plan proposes a new North Uttlesford Garden Community (NUGC) of up to 5,000

dwellings on land north east of Great Chesterford immediately adjoining South
Cambridgeshire (location map at Appendix A).

Page 9



10.

11.

12.

It is accepted that the provision of the homes and jobs needed in Uttlesford for the
plan period to 2033 will require hard choices to be made and that choices about
where development is located will always have environmental impacts. A key issue is
that development proposals must be proposed alongside appropriate planning for
necessary infrastructure to support all stages of the development. This report is
primarily concerned with the impacts of the NUGC on the residents and businesses of
South Cambridgeshire rather than the wider merits of the Uttlesford plan as a whole.

One of the key issues identified for South Cambridgeshire in this report is whether
appropriate transport infrastructure can be provided to support all stages of delivery
of the new settlement. The report considers both the evidence to support the delivery
of the full new settlement, including delivery beyond the plan period and whether
there could be short term impacts on the continued economic growth in the southern
employment cluster of research campuses in South Cambridgeshire. Also, given the
elevated location of the NUGC it considers what are its landscape and visual impacts
and whether there is evidence that they can be mitigated satisfactorily.

This report sets out the background and key proposals of the Uttlesford Local Plan,
and identifies a number of matters primarily concerning transport and landscape
impacts on which it is considered the plan and its evidence base cannot as yet
demonstrate adequate answers. It accordingly proposes that the Council submit
representations raising these concerns. It is proposed that the Council continues to
work constructively with Uttlesford District Council under the duty to cooperate to
explore whether the issues raised can be resolved, and if so the Council can review
its representations through the examination process.

Background

Uttlesford is a large mostly rural district located in north Essex immediately adjoining
a number of South Cambridgeshire parishes between Great and Little Chishill and
Castle Camps. The chief urban areas in Uttlesford are Saffron Walden in the north
with a 2011 population of 14,313 and Great Dunmow in the south with a population of
8,830. Nearby towns in adjoining districts to the west include Royston, Bishops
Stortford and Harlow, and to the east Braintree and Haverhill. Its southern edge
contains part of the London Green Belt which also extends around Bishops Stortford
and Stansted Airport.

Three nationally and internationally significant research institutes and Science Parks
are located nearby in South Cambridgeshire — the Wellcome Genome Campus in
Hinxton, Granta Park in Great Abington and the Babraham Research Campus in
Babraham. The Wellcome Genome Campus is preparing a planning application for
submission later in 2018 for a major expansion of their campus to the east of the
A1301 for around 175,000 sgm of employment floorspace and 1,500 new homes. In
regard to a site just to the north of the Wellcome proposals and south of the A505, in
March 2018 Planning Committee refused a planning application for the development
of an Agritech Park for up to 112,000 sgm of employment floorspace for around 4,900
jobs. The reasons for refusal included reference to transport and landscape impacts.
The period for lodging an appeal has not yet expired.

The main transport infrastructure in Uttlesford comprises the north south routes
between London and Cambridge (M11 and rail), and the east-west A120 which
connects Bishops Stortford, Stansted, Great Dunmow and Braintree. Three junctions
on the M11 serve Uttlesford. Junction 8 with the A120 supports all movements.
Junction 9 with the A11 on the border between Uttlesford and South Cambridgeshire
does not allow southbound traffic on the M11 to join the northbound traffic on the A1l

Page 10



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

or southbound traffic on the A1l to join northbound traffic on the M11. These missing
movements are provided for at the all movements Junction 10 with the A505 in South
Cambridgeshire. The Al1l skirts part of the northern boundary of Uttlesford.

Preparation of the Uttlesford Local Plan commenced in December 2014 when their
previous emerging plan was found to be unsound by a Planning Inspector following a
number of examination hearings. There were two main reasons given, first that their
housing target was too low, and second that their Elsenham Strategic allocation of
3,000 homes was not justified (located between Stansted Airport and Saffron Walden,
close to the M11). It was not justified because there had not been an adequate
consideration of alternative sites, the site had access only to inadequate rural roads,
there was insufficient capacity at junction 8 on the M11 and no certainty that funding
would be available to fund improvements, and only a small proportion of the residents
would use Elsenham Railway station for work journeys.

Work on their new Local Plan started immediately and Uttlesford consulted on Local
Plan Issues and Options between October and December 2015. This included
numerous areas of search for new settlements and urban extensions including a
location to the north-east of Great Chesterford. At that time their housing need was
thought to be no higher than 11,750 dwellings and that two new settlements may be
required to help them achieve this scale of growth. This Council submitted
representations on the Issues and Options following consideration of a report by the
Planning Portfolio Holder at his December 2015 meeting. In regard to a broad area of
search for a new settlement north-east of Great Chesterford these representations
primarily expressed concerns regarding the transport impacts of such a development
on adjoining parts of South Cambridgeshire.

In Summer 2017 Uttlesford held a draft Local Plan (Regulation 18) consultation which
included provision for a ‘North Uttlesford Garden Community’ (NUGC) north-east of
Great Chesterford for 5,000 dwellings of which 1,900 were to be provided by the end
of the plan period in 2033. A report on the consultation was considered by the
Planning Portfolio Holder on the 25" August 2017. These representations raised a
number of concerns regarding the soundness of the Local Plan and the NUGC
proposal in particular, primarily in respect of its transport impacts, deliverability,
viability, landscape impacts and downstream flood risks. A copy of the
representations submitted by SCDC is attached for reference at Appendix B.

The Regulation 19 Uttlesford Local Plan

The current Uttlesford Local Plan consultation (Regulation 19) consultation comprises
their draft Local Plan and its supporting sustainability appraisal. Their published plan
preparation programme states that they intend to consult on a Proposed Submission
Local Plan (Regulation 19) in summer 2018 (current stage), submit the plan for
examination in autumn 2018, and have the plan examined and adopted by autumn
2019. The timetable for the preparation of necessary development plan documents to
guide the development of their proposed new garden communities has not yet been
set out in their statutory development plan work programme (their local development
scheme).

A number of key considerations have influenced the emerging Uttlesford Local Plan.

These include: a housing need target which increased from 12,500 dwellings (2011-

2033) to 14,100 dwellings during the course of its preparation to take account of new
national household projections; the constrained transport infrastructure of the district
including at Saffron Walden; the fact that many of its residents look to the Cambridge
area and London for employment as well as to Stansted Airport; and Green Belt

Page 11



18.

19.

20.

constraints around Stansted and in the south of the district. Whilst Uttlesford forms
part of the Cambridge Travel to Work Area it is located within a different Housing
Market Area (HMA) with East Hertfordshire, Epping Forest and Harlow District
Councils, although it is recognised that because HMA boundaries follow
administrative boundaries they cannot provide a perfect fit with market behaviours.
Uttlesford is proposing to meet all of its housing need target for the plan period within
its own administrative area.

A key item of interest for this district concerns a proposed ‘North Uttlesford Garden
Community’ (NUGC) new settlement for 5,000 homes to the north east of Great
Chesterford south of the A11 on the boundary between Uttlesford and South
Cambridgeshire. The new settlement is addressed by policies SP5 and SP7 of the
emerging Uttlesford Local Plan and their supporting text (attached as Appendix C for
information). The policy requires the delivery of 1,925 dwellings on site by 2033 and
5,000 in total. The housing trajectory of the plan assumes that first completions can
be delivered on site in 2022/2023, building up to an ongoing completion rate of 250
dwellings per year by 2029/30 (and 300 dwellings in year 2032/2033). It can be noted
that achieving first housing delivery at NUGC in 2022/2023 is very ambitious even if
the Local Plan is adopted in 2019, because they intend to prepare a separate
statutory development plan document for it which it is estimated will take around two
years and will also need to consider planning applications and agree necessary
planning obligations.

The plan includes two further new garden communities: Easton Park west of Great
Dunmow on the A120 close to Stansted for 10,000 dwellings (1,925 by 2033), and on
land West of Braintree on the A120 for 3,500 dwellings (970 by 2033) which forms
part of a larger new settlement of 10,000 dwellings the majority of which being in
Braintree District. Easton Park is also scheduled to have first completions in
2022/2023. First completions in Uttlesford on Land West of Braintree are scheduled
for 2025/2026.

The Pre-Submission Draft Uttlesford Local Plan in general and the NUGC in
particular are supported by around 80 studies and evidence documents which
include:

e A Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment of the NUGC site, which
identifies that it is of a high landscape and visual sensitivity being on an
elevated sloping site visible in long distance views. Assessments of the two
other new settlement locations conclude that the sites are less sensitive being
of medium to high sensitivity.

e Adistrict wide Transport study and an addendum which support the provision
of the three new garden communities subject to a high modal travel share for
sustainable transport modes (public transport, bicycle and on foot).

e A Saffron Walden Transport Study which identifies that town centre road
constraints limit the scope for further peripheral development.

e A South Cambridgeshire Junction Study. This looks at junctions on the A505
in South Cambridgeshire including with the M11 Junction 10, A1301, A11 and
the A1307. The study concludes that the A505 is currently operating close
to/at capacity during peak periods. Mitigation measures to Junction 10 of the
M11 and to the A1301/A505 junctions are required at an initial estimated cost
of between £6.5m and £11m which are stated to ensure ‘nil-detriment’ or
better based on existing conditions plus identified growth in Cambridge, South
Cambridgeshire, Uttlesford, Braintree, Chelmsford, East Hertfordshire, Epping
Forest, and Harlow.

o Traffic Assignment Evidence concerning the NUGC submitted by the
Uttlesford promoter at the Regulation 18 stage shows that 32% of work

Page 12



21.

22.

commutes would be to Cambridge, 17% to London, 4.79% to Granta Park and
2.75% to the Babraham Research Campus. It also identifies that the A11 and
the A1307 would be the preferred routes for northbound traffic with 28% of car
trips from the site following this route. The Regulation 19 Local Plan confirms
that the A1l remains the preferred route for northbound traffic.

e An A505 Corridor Improvement Feasibility Study which concludes that there
are achievable options to improve capacity on the A505 corridor both on-line
and off-line.

o Aresponse from Cambridgeshire County Council to the transport evidence
states that it is ‘reasonably content with the transport evidence presented as it
shows that there is deliverable mitigation for the likely impact of the proposed
development in the district on Cambridgeshire roads’ saying that it is likely
that the solution required for the Uttlesford Growth will ultimately form part
of a strategic package that is identified by the Combined Authority” and
“These impacts will need to be mitigated by the developers to Cambridgeshire
County Council’s satisfaction and in accordance with the proportional impacts
of the developments’.

e An Economic Viability Study regarding the new settlements concludes that
they are viable having tested scenarios where s106 and infrastructure
contributions were either £40,000 per dwelling or £50,000 per dwelling.

e The Sustainability Appraisal of the Regulation 19 Local Plan whilst being
generally supportive of the plan as a whole does identify significant negative
impacts in regard to the NUGC proposal in respect of its impacts on
landscape character and townscape, and heritage impacts noting that it is
uncertain whether suitable mitigation could be provided and in regard to
sustainable methods of travel identifying negative impacts on the basis that a
large amount of commuting to jobs outside the district would be by car.

Scrutiny and Overview Committee deadlines are such that this report is being written
relatively early in the consultation period. Officers will continue to consider this
extensive body of material, key parts of which have been updated since the
Regulation 18 consultation in summer 2017, and it may accordingly be necessary to
bring forward supplementary reports concerning the plan and its sustainability
appraisal before Scrutiny and/or Cabinet.

Considerations

This Council’s consideration of the Uttlesford Local Plan is focused on ensuring that
the plan is compatible with the interests of South Cambridgeshire both in the short
term and in the context of the early preparation of the joint Greater Cambridge Local
Plan. A particular focus is on the relationship of the proposed new NUGC with the
continued economic success of the southern economic cluster in South
Cambridgeshire. The broad implications of the proposed NUGC for South
Cambridgeshire are:

Advantages:

e Homes in the NUGC would help to serve the southern employment cluster
extending from the Cambridge Biomedical Campus to the Wellcome Genome
Campus and Granta Park / the Babraham Research Campus. The NUGC
would provide homes close to the significant jobs existing and proposed in the
southern employment cluster, where limited new housing is proposed in the
emerging South Cambridgeshire Local Plan.

Page 13



23.

e The Council could take the opportunity to discuss with Uttlesford District
Council under the duty to cooperate, how housing to be provided at NUGC
beyond the plan period for the draft Uttlesford Local Plan of 2033, would be
apportioned in future local plans in view of the function acknowledged in the
Uttlesford evidence that it would play in providing housing close to jobs in
South Cambridgeshire. However at this stage discussions have not taken
place on this issue and there can be no certainty that agreement would be
reached. Even if the dwelling numbers could not be formally counted towards
the Greater Cambridge housing requirement, the development of the NUGC
would perform a role in serving the southern employment cluster, which could
inform the future development strategy for Greater Cambridge.

Disadvantages:

e The plan relies on a strategic solution to the A505 being delivered to enable
the full delivery of the new settlement beyond the plan period, to which there
is currently no commitment by the highway authority. The Local Plan relies on
1,925 homes in the plan period but there is a question over the robustness of
the evidence supporting the delivery of the new settlement as a whole and it
would not be sustainable development if only a part of the new settlement
were to be delivered.

e The early years of delivery of the new settlement would rely on taking up
much of the limited capacity that the evidence supporting the Local Plan
seeks to demonstrate could be secured in the A505 corridor ahead of a major
improvement scheme. This could have impacts on the continued delivery of
jobs at existing campuses in South Cambridgeshire in the southern
employment cluster. The Wellcome Genome Campus is also developing
proposals for a major expansion of the campus and a planning application is
anticipated to be submitted this year. The Wellcome proposal will clearly need
to be considered on its merits weighing all material planning considerations.
The southern cluster is of key importance to the local and national economy.
Indeed the Independent Economic Commission in its interim report to the
Combined Authority advised that continued success in Greater Cambridge will
be essential as part of the ambition to double GVA in the Combined Authority
area.

e There is arisk of local traffic problems for nearby South Cambridgeshire
villages, especially before any major A505 improvements are implemented,
caused by traffic ‘rat-running’ through village roads to avoid the A505 as much
as possible.

e There would be an acknowledged landscape impact for South
Cambridgeshire given the location of the new settlement on rising land to the
south-east of the A11.

Is the Regulation 19 Uttlesford Local Plan ‘sound’?

The current National Planning Policy Framework 2012 (NPPF) says that to be ‘sound’
a Local Plan should be positively prepared (meeting development needs and
infrastructure requirements), justified (the most appropriate strategy compared to
reasonable alternatives), effective (the plan is deliverable over the plan period based
on effective cross-boundary working on strategic priorities), and consistent with
national policy (it will deliver sustainable development as defined in the NPPF).

Page 14



24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

A new NPPF is due to come into force this summer which is likely to make some
important policy changes including to these tests of soundness. However transitional
arrangements included in the consultation draft NPPF earlier this year stated that the
examination of Local Plans submitted for examination before or within 6 months of its
introduction will take no account of the new NPPF. This is important because the new
tests of soundness no longer require a Local Plan to be ‘the most appropriate
strategy’ (the new wording is less onerous requiring ‘an appropriate strategy’ and
require ‘statements of common ground’ to have been agreed between adjoining
districts which can include matters on which no agreement has been reached (such
statements are often prepared but are currently discretionary).

A letter from the Planning Inspector considering a Strategic (Section 1) Plan for the
North Essex authorities of Braintree, Colchester and Tendring to the Councils on g
June 2018 raises matters that will be relevant to the ‘soundness’ of the Regulation 19
Uttlesford Local Plan (a link to the letter can be found in the ‘background documents’
section of this report). The three local planning authorities involved are taking forward
their Local Plans with a common strategic section 1 plan which makes provision for
three new garden communities: at the Colchester/Braintree Borders, at the
Tendring/Colchester Borders and at land west of Braintree (this site crosses into
Uttlesford but the land within Uttlesford was not part of the Strategic (Section 1) plan
under examination; it is included as a proposal in the Pre-Submission Draft Uttlesford
Local Plan).

In summary the letter finds that greater certainty is needed over the provision of trunk
road improvements and other transport infrastructure in order to demonstrate that the
garden communities are deliverable in full. This is relevant to the Uttlesford Local
Plan since the provision of additional transport capacity in and around the A505
corridor is required to demonstrate that the NUGC is deliverable in full, including the
cost and funding of such measures and the expected financial contribution from the
NUGC towards additional transport capacity in and around the A505 corridor
necessary to deliver the full new settlement.

The Inspector’s letter gives the authorities three options: 1 - to remove the garden
communities from the Strategic (Section 1) Plan and commit to an early plan review;
2 - to suspend the examination to allow further development of the evidence base
and sustainability appraisal to address identified concerns, or 3 - to withdraw the
Strategic (Section 1) Plan and the detailed Section 2 plans of each authority from
examination and resubmit them after conducting any necessary revisions including
work on the evidence base and Sustainability appraisal. No response has yet been
published.

The Inspector's comments have been taken into account in the proposed response to
the Uttlesford Local Plan in so far as they have implications for the NUGC, which is
the focus of South Cambridgeshire’s interest. No comment is therefore made on any
wider implications for the other two garden communities included in the Draft
Uttlesford Local Plan, including reliance in the plan on 970 dwelling completions
within Uttlesford on land west of Braintree, which is a matter for Uttlesford District
Council.

Page 15



29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

The main areas of interest in relation to the NUGC proposal as they affect South
Cambridgeshire relate to the provision of housing close to jobs in the southern part of
South Cambridgeshire, but this must be considered alongside transport and
landscape and visual impacts that at this time have not been fully resolved, as was
the case at the previous consultation. These impacts are addressed below, as they
relate to the tests of soundness that will be the focus of the independent Inspector
examining the local plan.

Transport Infrastructure to deliver full new NUGC

Has the Local Plan been positively prepared?

The draft Uttlesford Local Plan seeks to meet objectively assessed development
requirements for homes and jobs in Uttlesford. South Cambridgeshire District Council
understands and supports the need to plan positively for growth. It is particularly
important to ensure that growth is accompanied and enabled by the timely delivery of
appropriate infrastructure. There are currently uncertainties regarding the provision
and funding of additional transport capacity in and around the A505 corridor over the
short to long term, addressed below, and this Council has little alternative but to
object to the proposed NUGC, at least until such time as there is the necessary
certainty in this regard. These soundness focussed transport concerns can be
distinguished from the technical response of Cambridgeshire County Council to the
Uttlesford transport evidence, who commented that they are reasonably content with
their transport evidence, based upon a strategic solution to the A505 and the
opportunity to comment on more detailed proposals as they come through the
planning system.

The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority already considers that a
need exists for a transport study to identify strategic solutions in and around the A505
corridor. The study is expected to go out to tender in the near future. However, at this
stage there is no commitment by the highway authority to deliver an improvement
scheme that can demonstrate that the NUGC as a whole is deliverable.

The NUGC itself could only fund a proportion of the costs of such works. In addition
to possible funding from the Combined Authority, further funding may include from
other local partners, developer contributions, or from government through a Large
Local Major Transport Scheme or the Roads Investment Strategy, however funding
commitments are not in place at the present time.

South Cambridgeshire District Council has been supportive of the need for an A505
corridor scheme and it will be an important issue for the joint Greater Cambridge
Local Plan. However, even assuming that the study finds appropriate solutions to
transport capacity in and around the A505 corridor, there would need to be
commitment from the highway authority to delivery of a scheme, assuming that
funding can be secured, before it could be relied on in plan making. In view of the
process of gaining development consent for construction of a scheme and a period
for construction, major improvements in and around the A505 corridor will not be
available to support development for some years into the future.

The question arises how to address these uncertainties with regard to the provision of

transport infrastructure to support the NUGC as a whole and whether there is
evidence to support a full allocation within the Regulation 19 Local Plan.

Page 16



35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

The supporting text to the NUGC policy says that beyond the end of the plan period,
a cap of 3,300 new homes should be placed on any allocation at North Uttlesford
Garden Community to ensure that development over this figure does not take place
until strategic highway improvements have been implemented. However this is not
included in Policy SP7 for the NUGC. An option would be to amend Policy SP7 to
include a cap on development at 3,300 dwellings; although this assumes that any
capacity that may be capable of being created is all for NUGC and not to enable
further economic development in the southern cluster. Also, even if a cap were
included, the uncertainty over full deliverability of the new settlement as a whole
remains. This needs to be considered in light of the Inspector’s letter into the North
Essex Authorities Strategic (Section 1) Plan examination.

Another option would be for Policy SP7 to be conditional on a commitment from the
highway authority to the delivery of a major scheme for the A505 to provide for the full
development of NUGC.

Alternatively the policy could be amended to safeguard the site for future
development. If other challenges to the NUGC can be overcome or suitably mitigated
so that the only uncertainty remains necessary transport infrastructure, the Local Plan
could also include a policy commitment to an early plan review to take place once
there is more certainty regarding transport capacity in and around the A505 corridor.
Such an approach would allow for the Combined Authority to firm up its non-statutory
spatial plan and its formal transport strategy for the Combined Authority area which
will help to provide the policy context for the future of the adjoining parts of South
Cambridgeshire. It would be for Uttlesford District Council to consider whether any
marginal loss of dwelling capacity at NUGC during the plan period could potentially
be made up through small scale developments elsewhere in Uttlesford.

This Council is not advocating any particular means for resolving the challenges
presented in relation to transport infrastructure but is suggesting that there are other
potential alternatives, and this issue should be carefully explored through the
examination of the Regulation 19 Local Plan.

Is the Local Plan effective?

A sound plan should be deliverable over the plan period and be based on effective
joint working on cross-boundary strategic priorities.

As addressed above, there is no evidence that demonstrates that the full NUGC can
be delivered due to uncertainties at the present time in the delivery of appropriate
solutions to provide the necessary transport capacity in and around the A505 corridor.

Is the Local Plan justified?

A sound plan should be the most appropriate strategy, when considered against the
reasonable alternatives.

This report has already noted that a Planning Inspector has raised concerns about
the sustainability of the land west of Braintree garden community (in Braintree), and
that the larger new settlement which lies within Uttlesford is relied upon to deliver 970
homes by the end of the plan period in 2033. It is not proposed that this Council offers
any comment on the overall soundness of the plan, which will be a matter for the
Inspector. However, the North Essex Inspector’s concerns about the overall
deliverability of the Braintree garden community has parallels with the questions
raised in this report around the deliverability of the NUGC as a whole.

Page 17



43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

Is the Local Plan consistent with national policy?

Paragraph 154 of the NPPF requires Local Plans to be aspirational but realistic. In
this regard it can be noted that transport solutions to support the full NUGC have yet
to be identified. Similarly paragraph 173 requires plans to be deliverable and able to
be developed viably. However the full NUGC is not deliverable without major
transport capacity improvements in and around the A505 corridor for which no
funding source has been secured and there is no commitment by the highway
authority to deliver such a scheme at this time.

Paragraphs 30 and 34 state that Local Plans should support a pattern of development
which, where reasonable to do so, facilitates the use of sustainable modes of
transport. The NUGC site is currently poorly served by public transport and not well
connected to local employment sites. Policy SP7 on the NUGC does require
improved provision and the supporting text to policy SP5 states that 60% of journeys
should be by public transport and active modes. However opportunities to improve
access to rail are very limited and the relatively elevated and steep slopes on which
much of the proposed residential areas will be located are likely to reduce the
attractiveness of cycling as a practical means of travel both within and outside the
site. It is therefore not clear whether or how this would be achieved.

Paragraph 32 seeks cost effective transport improvements to limit significant
transport impacts. However policy SP7 paragraph 8 does not specifically require the
provision of traffic calming and other mitigation measures to control ‘rat-running’ in
nearby South Cambridgeshire villages as it should. The proposed wording at the end
of policy paragraph 8 is too vague and should be strengthened.

Transport Infrastructure to deliver the first 1,925 dwellings at NUGC

Has the Local Plan been positively prepared?

The evidence supporting the Local Plan demonstrates that only limited additional
capacity could be created in the A505 and key junctions ahead of implementing a
major scheme. How such capacity should be used is an important consideration for
South Cambridgeshire, even if it is demonstrated that a long term solution will be
delivered.

Is the Local Plan effective?

UDC have undertaken additional evidence documents since mid 2017 particularly in
regard to transport which state that 1,925 dwellings can be accommodated with
limited mitigation measures to deliver nil-detriment to local road junctions. The
implications of the proposed approach to transport for the early phases of
development at NUGC on continued economic growth in South Cambridgeshire in the
short to medium term is also of concern.

Is the Local Plan consistent with national policy?
A sound Local Plan should enable the delivery of sustainable development in

accordance with the policies in the NPPF. In this regard the following concerns have
been identified.

Page 18



49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

Paragraphs 18-21 of the NPPF are concerned with building a strong and competitive
economy. However the NUGC by adding to the pressure on local transport
infrastructure may constrain the scope for the growth of the Greater Cambridge life
sciences cluster (including at the CBC, Wellcome, Granta, Babraham and at Great
Chesterford sites) described in the May 2018 interim report of the Cambridge and
Peterborough Independent Economic Review as ‘world-leading’. The success of this
sector will be especially important post-Brexit and key to the future doubling of the
local economy over the next 25 years which is an objective of the Combined
Authority. The potential for the NUGC proposal to constrain delivery of continued
economic growth is the southern cluster of South Cambridgeshire would be of
significant concern in terms of its impact locally, for the Combined Authority area and
for the national economy. The Council has received no reassurance that this would
not be the case.

Transport — Sustainability Appraisal

It can also be noted that the SA appraisal of the NUGC site from page 213 of the SA
gives the site a positive score in regard to sustainable travel despite noting in the
commentary that ‘It would also be expected that there would be a large amount of
commuting outside the District for jobs would be by car’ (SA Objective 9).

In regard to SA Objective 13 (Infrastructure) it can be noted that whilst the objective is
to ensure the necessary infrastructure is provided to support each new garden
community the site selection criteria and the commentary make no reference to the
deliverability of transport infrastructure concentrating only on recreation, allotments
and utilities provision.

It is not clear how these impacts have been taken into account and mitigated by the
Local Plan.

Landscape and Visual Impacts on South Cambridgeshire

Is the Local Plan consistent with national policy?

Paragraph 110 of the NPPF states that in preparing plans to meet development
needs, the aim should be to minimise pollution, and other adverse effects on the
natural environment ‘Plans should allocate land with the least environmental or
amenity value, where consistent with other policies in the NPPF’. However it is not
clear that this is what the Uttlesford Local Plan has done. The NUGC because of its
elevated position will inevitably be a source of light pollution from street and other
lighting, especially in winter, over a wide area. The landscape evidence relied upon
by Uttlesford to support their own plan identifies the site as being of high landscape
and visual sensitivity being on an elevated sloping site visible in long distance views.
Assessments of the two other new settlement locations conclude that the sites are
less sensitive being of medium to high sensitivity. The Sustainability Appraisal of the
Uttlesford Local Plan also identifies the significant landscape impacts which arise
from the proposal commenting ‘it is uncertain at this stage whether suitable mitigation
could be provided without affecting the developable area’.

Page 19



54.

55.

56.

S7.

58.

The NUGC contains or lies close to a number of designated heritage assets including
a scheduled monument. Paragraph 132 of the NPPF states that great weight should
be given to the assets conservation and that substantial harm to or loss of scheduled
monuments should be wholly exceptional. The Sustainability Appraisal of the
Uttlesford Local Plan identifies significant heritage impacts commenting ‘Development
of the entirety of the site would be unsuitable; however it is theoretically feasible for
potential mitigation to avoid major change the setting and significance of the
scheduled monument’ and also identifying cumulative impacts arising from the
topography of the site such that it is not known at this stage whether suitable
mitigation could be achieved.

Paragraph 152 of the NPPF in regard to plan making states that local planning
authorities should seek opportunities to achieve each of the economic, social, and
environmental dimensions of sustainable development and states that: ‘Significant
adverse impacts on any of these dimensions should be avoided and, wherever
possible, alternative options which reduce or eliminate such impacts should be
pursued’. However a number of significant harms regarding the NUGC have been
identified in regard to transport and landscape. A revised NUGC development could
reduce its harm by avoiding any built development on the high plateau / ridgelines on
the site or on the slopes facing towards the A11l. This could be achieved by reducing
the overall scale of the new settlement to that which could be accommodated within
the south- west and south facing valleys of the site or amending its southern
boundary. The Council does not offer a preference for an alternative site; the issue for
South Cambridgeshire District Council is the impact of the current NUGC proposal on
its area. The examination of the Regulation 19 Local Plan will need to establish that
there are no reasonable alternative options to accommodate development which
would eliminate the harms identified to the three dimensions of sustainable
development or that the level of harm can be satisfactorily mitigated.

The report relied upon by UDC to provide a Landscape and Visual Assessment of the
NUGC site has been reviewed by officers and a number of omissions identified
particularly in regard to views of the NUGC site from South Cambridgeshire to the
north, east and west, particularly of its north west facing slopes but also of its
exposed plateau top. This report is the same evidence that supported the last
consultation and they have not undertaken any additional landscape work to support
the NUGC allocation or seek to address the concerns this Council raised at the last
consultation.

Landscape — Sustainability Appraisal

The Sustainability Appraisal (SA) of policy SP7 regarding the NUGC at pages 75/76
states in relation to its landscape / visual and heritage aspects of the policy that ‘the
potential for impacts to be significant cannot be ruled out until further details are
known’, and that no proposal would be permitted unless it satisfies policy
requirements for mitigation. However this assumes that there will be effective
mitigations available given that the SA appraisal of the NUGC site in Appendix 1 of
the SA (as opposed to the appraisal of policy SP7) identifies significant adverse
impacts in regard to landscape and heritage of which there can be no certainty that
appropriate mitigation can be achieved.

In regard to SA objective 7 concerned with pollution it can be noted that the appraisal

does not take light pollution into account when the NUGC could be expected to be
highly visible on winter evenings and mornings.

Page 20



59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

Duty to Cooperate

Cross-boundary strategic priorities include the delivery of homes and jobs, transport
infrastructure, and the conservation and enhancement of the natural and historic
environment, including landscape impacts on South Cambridgeshire. In this regard a
number of duty-to-cooperate meetings have been held between Uttlesford and SCDC
around our previous representations to their emerging Local Plan (including those
from August 2017 set out in Appendix B). As yet no agreed position has emerged
with regard to the NUGC and especially regarding its transport and landscape
impacts on South Cambridgeshire. This Council will continue to work with Uttlesford
on an on-going basis under the duty to cooperate.

Options

Members may decide to:
e agree the proposed representations;
¢ amend some or all of the representations; or
e agree that no representations should be made to the Uttlesford Local Plan
consultation.

In their consideration of these options members should have regard to the Uttlesford
consultation deadline of 5.00pm on the 13" August, that the report for Cabinet has to
be finalised by 5pm on the 16™ July and that only representations made in respect of
this Regulation 19 consultation will be considered by the Planning Inspector
conducting the examination into the soundness of the Uttlesford Local Plan.

Implications

In the writing of this report, taking into account financial, legal, staffing, risk
management, equality and diversity, climate change, community safety and any other
key issues, the following implications have been considered: -

Financial

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. There may be
indirect and potential financial future implications if it is determined that the Councils
case could be strengthened by the use of expert consultants or legal representation
at any future examination of the Uttlesford Local Plan.

Legal
There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.

Staffing
There are no direct staffing implications arising from this report.

Risk Management
No direct risks to this Council or to South Cambridgeshire residents and businesses
have been identified.

Equality and Diversity
There are no direct equality and diversity implications arising from this report.

Climate Change
There are no direct climate change implications arising from this report.

Page 21



Effect on Strategic Aims

A. LIVING WELL Support our communities to remain in good health whilst
continuing to protect the natural and built environment
69. This report has identified potential impacts on the landscape affecting this district.

B. HOMES FOR OUR FUTURE
Secure the delivery of a wide range of housing to meet the needs of existing
and future communities

70. The provision of sufficient homes in Uttlesford to meet their objectively assessed
housing need will contribute to meeting housing needs across south-east England
and so help contain development pressures on South Cambridgeshire.

C. CONNECTED COMMUNITIES

Work with partners to ensure new transport and digital infrastructure supports
and strengthens communities and that our approach to growth sustains
prosperity

71. This report has identified potential impacts on the transport infrastructure affecting the
southern part of South Cambridgeshire.

Appendices

Appendix A: Location Map

Appendix B: SCDC representations made in response to the Uttlesford Local Plan
(Regulation 18) consultation August 2017

Appendix C: Extracts from the Uttlesford Regulation 19 Local Plan concerning the
NUGC

Background Papers

Where the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information)

(England) Requlations 2012 require documents to be open to inspection by members of the

public, they must be available for inspection: -

(a) at all reasonable hours at the offices of South Cambridgeshire District Council;

(b) on the Council's website; and

(©) in the case of documents to be available for inspection pursuant to regulation 15, on
payment of a reasonable fee required by the Council by the person seeking to inspect
the documents at the offices of South Cambridgeshire District Council.

The Proposed Submission Uttlesford Local Plan:
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4684/The-Requlation-19-Pre-submission-Local-Plan-
and-how-to-comment

The evidence base supporting the Proposed Submission Uttlesford Local Plan including its
Sustainability Appraisal: https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/localplanevidence

Letter to the North Essex Authorities dated 8" June 2018 from the Planning Inspector
examining the Strategic (Section 1) Plan for Braintree, Colchester and Tendring:
https://cornerstonebarristers.com/cmsAdmin/uploads/ied011-inspector-s-section-1-
post hearing-letter-to-neas-june8-18-compressed.pdf

Report Author: David Roberts — Principal Planning Policy Officer
Telephone: (01954) 713348
David.roberts@scambs.gov.uk

Page 22


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2089/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2089/contents/made
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4684/The-Regulation-19-Pre-submission-Local-Plan-and-how-to-comment
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4684/The-Regulation-19-Pre-submission-Local-Plan-and-how-to-comment
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/localplanevidence
https://cornerstonebarristers.com/cmsAdmin/uploads/ied011-inspector-s-section-1-post_hearing-letter-to-neas-june8-18-compressed.pdf
https://cornerstonebarristers.com/cmsAdmin/uploads/ied011-inspector-s-section-1-post_hearing-letter-to-neas-june8-18-compressed.pdf
mailto:David.roberts@scambs.gov.uk

Page 23



Appendix A: Location Map
NUGC

=

S\
Y Addenbrooke’s

ks & Cambridge
¢, Biomedical Campus

11 Great

Shelford Babraham

Research Park

A
o’ \\‘\
N
10,
q’@emm
.l
£
Wellcome Trust Y
Genome Campus ,'
& * J9 &
! 7
: ’
’ Chesterford
““ | Research Park

Saffron
Walden

Stortford

e

Elsenham (new settlement site rejected in 2014)

Easton Par

Land west of Braintree
New settlement proposals are shown in blue
Green Belt land in Uttlesford is shown in green hatching
Blue lines show the M11, A120, A11 and A505
Red lines and dots show rail lines and stations

Page 24



Appendix B: SCDC representations made in response to the Uttlesford Local Plan
(Regulation 18) consultation August 2017

Uttlesford Local Plan Consultation

Response from South Cambridgeshire District Council

1. South Cambridgeshire District Council (SCDC) welcomes the opportunity to comment
on the emerging draft Uttlesford Local Plan. The main proposal with implications and
impacts for South Cambridgeshire is the proposed North Uttlesford Garden
Community (NUGC) and comments are focused on that proposal. Engagement has
taken place between officers and Members of the two Councils and with
Cambridgeshire County Council to seek to understand the emerging proposals and
their potential impacts for South Cambridgeshire and the adequacy of the supporting
evidence. A number of questions about the evidence and rationale for the proposed
NUGC are raised in these representations to ensure the Council has a better
understanding of the case for the new settlement. At this stage, the Council is not
convinced that the evidence provided clearly supports the proposal and is concerned
that there could potentially be negative implications for South Cambridgeshire.
However, the Council wishes to continue to engage positively and productively with
Uttlesford District Council (UDC) to develop a clear understanding ahead of the next
stage in the plan making process. As such, no view has been expressed to date on
the principle of the emerging NUGC proposals.

2. SCDC has based its comments around the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) statement that to be ‘sound’ a Local Plan should be positively prepared
(meeting development needs and infrastructure requirements), justified (the most
appropriate strategy compared to reasonable alternatives), effective (the plan is
deliverable over the plan period based on effective cross-boundary working on
strategic priorities), and consistent with national policy (it will deliver sustainable
development as defined in the NPPF).

3. The NPPF requires Local Planning Authorities to work collaboratively to ensure that
strategic priorities across local boundaries are properly co-ordinated to meet
development requirements. Local Planning Authorities are expected to demonstrate
evidence of having effectively cooperated to plan for issues with cross-boundary
impacts when their Local Plans are submitted for examination. These duties apply to
both UDC and SCDC. As stated above, SCDC is engaging at officer and Member
level with UDC and will continue to do so.

4, A key consideration for SCDC in considering whether the Uttlesford Local Plan is
soundly based, is whether it is ‘sustainable’ in terms of its environmental, social and
economic impacts as required by national policy guidance in the NPPF and whether it
is supported by robust evidence. Part of this consideration includes taking a strategic
view on whether there are potential advantages for South Cambridgeshire arising
from the NUGC proposal as well as any potential disadvantages, and also
considering the local impacts and implications of the proposal.

5. The NUGC would provide new homes close to existing and planned jobs in regard to
the three nearby research institutes and science parks in South Cambridgeshire
(Wellcome Genome Campus, Granta Park, and Babraham Institute) and SCDC is
aware that they have plans for continued growth. The life sciences cluster extending
south from the Cambridge Biomedical Campus is widely recognised as being of
international importance and appropriate continued sustainable growth (which the

Page 25



provision of nearby homes could assist), is considered to be important for both the
local and national economy, notwithstanding that some emerging proposals are yet to
be considered through the planning process. These new homes have potential to
contribute to meeting housing needs in the area, providing local supply of market
housing and providing choice. The NUGC could also potentially help to reduce
pressures for strategic growth south of Cambridge in the context of next Local Plan
for Greater Cambridge, to be prepared jointly between SCDC and Cambridge City
Council, work on which is due to commence by 2019 as promised in the Greater
Cambridge Partnership (formerly the Greater Cambridge City Deal) agreement.

Alternatively, the Council considers that there is a risk that the NUGC could constrain
the future growth of the three nearby research institutes and science parks in South
Cambridgeshire by overloading local transport infrastructure, taking up additional
capacity that could be created in the local road network in South Cambridgeshire
through more local mitigation measures (as opposed to strategic improvements,
particularly to the A505 for which there is currently no scheme or committed funding).
All of the sites have growth aspirations, for example the Welcome Trust Genome
Campus have published a 25 year vision for growth on land located to the east of the
existing campus. Whislt this proposal currently has no planning status, it would be of
concern if a NUGC were to constrain proper consideration of this potentially nationally
important proposal at the appropriate time._There is also a risk that NUGC could
prevent or reduce potential for consideration of whether there are better alternative
housing-led options to support the growth of the life sciences cluster south of
Cambridge.

SCDC is of the view that even if the NUGC were demonstrated to have considerable
advantages for both districts, it should not be allocated for development unless it can
be demonstrated that its allocation in the Uttlesford Local Plan would be both sound

and sustainable.

Is the draft Uttlesford Local Plan and the NUGC proposal sound and sustainable?

8.

10.

National policy considerations place considerable emphasis on the three components
of sustainable development (social, environmental and economic). SCDC recognises
that the emerging Uttlesford Local Plan is positively prepared in the sense that it
seeks to meet objectively assessed development needs, but considers that questions
remain in particular over the transport and landscape implications and impacts of the
proposal.

SCDC has outstanding concerns that the NUGC proposal may not be able to deliver
all the necessary transport infrastructure to enable its development, both in relation to
the complete 5,000 dwelling garden community or for the 1,900 dwellings proposed
by the emerging Uttlesford Local Plan for delivery by 2033.

It is particularly important that any new settlement is supported by appropriate
transport infrastructure and that the impacts of development can be adequately and
appropriately mitigated. This view is informed by considerable experience in South
Cambridgeshire in planning and delivering new settlements. A number of concerns
have been identified with the transport evidence supporting the NUGC which, unless
capable of being satisfactorily addressed, would in SCDC’s view call into question
whether its inclusion in the Local Plan would meet the NPPF tests of being justified or
effective. SCDC is involved in ongoing discussions with Uttlesford District Council,
and including Cambridgeshire County Council, which aim to fully understand the
assumptions made and their potential implications for understanding the transport
impacts on South Cambridgeshire.

Page 26



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

SCDC considers it important that transport evidence for the emerging Uttlesford Local
Plan takes full account of the fact that the highway network in this area of South
Cambridgeshire already experiences severely congested conditions at peak times,
with the A505 between Royston and the A1l being one of the most heavily trafficked
routes in Cambridgeshire. In addition many of the junctions in the area are already
extremely congested at peak times, particularly around the junction with the A505 and
A1301 and at Junction 10 of the M11. This congestion already results in rat-running
through local villages to avoid the A505 including in the villages of Hinxton, Ickleton
and Duxford.

The transport studies informing the emerging Uttlesford Local Plan should also take
full account of growth that is already planned not only in Uttlesford but in the area
surrounding the NUGC and potentially affected by it, in order to properly understand
the impacts arising from the new community.

Based on our understanding of the transport evidence, it currently appears to SCDC
that the district wide Transport study and the South Cambridgeshire Junction Study
have not taken account of the full extent of planned employment growth in Cambridge
and South Cambridgeshire. The junction study states that it has taken account of
24,042 new jobs across the two districts, whereas the two Local Plans are planning to
provide for the 44,100 jobs forecast by our economic evidence. This means that the
transport studies that are intended to support the emerging Uttlesford Local Plan
appear not to have taken account of 20,058 planned extra jobs in Cambridge and
South Cambridgeshire. SCDC is concerned that this is potentially a significant flaw,
especially in the context of the growth aspirations of the three research institutes and
Science Parks in the south of the district.

It seems that the studies have not taken any account of planned growth in West
Suffolk at Haverhill on the A1307 for 5,000 homes over the plan period, much of
which will rely on the A1307 to access jobs in the Greater Cambridge area and
especially at the Cambridge Biomedical Campus. The importance of this link and its
inadequate capacity explains its inclusion in the Greater Cambridge Partnership’s
A1307 project. This is important because the NUGC is also stated to rely on the
A1307 for the majority of vehicle journeys to the north towards Cambridge. Those
residents who need to access the employment areas to the west and north of
Cambridge via the A505 and M11 will add to the pressure on the A505 and lead to
additional village rat-running.

SCDC also notes that the junction study does not seem to take account of planned
growth around Royston in North Hertfordshire when it does take account of distant
growth in Harlow, Chelmsford and Epping Forest.

There are therefore a number of technical queries in relation to the transport evidence
SCDC wishes to follow up with Uttlesford District Council through continued
engagement, which we consider could have implications for the soundness of the
evidence and influence our other comments.

SCDC has also considered the proposed NUGC proposal in the context of the NPPF
requirement for Local Plan proposals to be deliverable and viable. The South
Cambridgeshire Junction Study states that road mitigations exist to support the
delivery of 3,300 homes at the NUGC site, for which it provides initial costings of
£7.5m to £11m. However, no mitigations for the full 5,000 home site have been
identified which in SCDC'’s view raises questions about its deliverability and therefore
the effectiveness of the Local Plan. It also seems clear that the viability evidence

Page 27



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

supporting the NUGC site has not taken account of up to £10m of mitigation
measures. Setting aside questions about the robustness of these figures, it appears
that the viability study has not taken account of a considerable additional expense
and SCDC urges UDC to consider carefully whether there is robust evidence to show
that the NUGC is deliverable and that the plan including the NUGC is effective.

The delivery of these 3,300 homes would remove any ‘spare’ capacity on the
Cambridgeshire highway network close to the Uttlesford border, with implications for
future growth in this successful and dynamic part of South Cambridgeshire, ahead of
considerations of the development strategy looking beyond the current emerging
South Cambridgeshire Local Plan time horizon of 2031. The Mayor of the new
Greater Cambridge and Greater Peterborough Combined Authority has identified as a
priority preparation of a non statutory spatial plan for the area and Cambridge City
and South Cambridgeshire District Councils have committed to starting work on a
joint Greater Cambridge Local Plan by 2019.

UDC recognises that for the full NUGC development to come forward it is likely to
require a major upgrade to the A505. Upgrading of the A505 is recognised as being
an important scheme for the southern part of South Cambridgeshire, but there is
currently no scheme or identified funding and therefore no certainty that major
improvements will come forward in the time frame to deliver the full NUGC. Under
these circumstances SCDC understands that only a smaller new settlement would be
able to be delivered. If this were to be the case, SCDC has questions about the
sustainability of a smaller settlement, including whether it would be able to support a
secondary school, which the council regards as a fundamental requirement of
achieving a sustainable new settlement.

SCDC acknowledges that the proximity of the NUGC to the station at Great
Chesterford is a potential advantage; however the station currently supports only a
limited number of stopping services unlike the stations at Whittlesford Parkway and
Audley End. SCDC considers that development of NUGC could be expected to add to
the pressure on those stations and on the local roads providing access to them.

The development of the NUGC, according to the evidence supporting the draft
Uttlesford Local Plan, would have significant negative impacts on landscape. SCDC
does not consider that it has been demonstrated at this stage that these can be
appropriately mitigated or that it is possible to develop the new community avoiding
ridgelines and elevated valley sides. The Council considers that major development
on the site could appear to be an alien and intrusive element in the local landscape
which would be visible in long distance views. SCDC has not been able to identify
anywhere in the evidence supporting the emerging Uttlesford Local Plan where it has
been demonstrated that reasonable alternatives do not exist which would have a
reduced impact on the landscape. For SCDC, these points call in question whether a
Local Plan including the NUGC would meet the NPPF test of being appropriately
justified.

Turning to other infrastructure issues. There are known downstream flood risks below
the NUGC site and potential impacts on the aquifer which underlies the site. Both are
matters which are the statutory responsibility of the Environment Agency who will
consider both matters in their comments on the Local Plan. The potable water supply
for Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire delivered by the Cambridge Water
Company is all derived from groundwater supplies and SCDC considers that it must
be demonstrated that the NUGC would not jeopardise or reduce this supply. The
Council does not yet consider that the consistency of the NUGC proposal with the
environmental policies of the NPPF has been demonstrated. The Water Cycle Study

Page 28



23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

reports that a new or extensively upgraded water recycling centre will be required to
serve the NUGC but there appears to be no mention of this in the New Settlement
Economic Viability Study entry for the NUGC, nor is any allowance made for the cost
of supplying potable water to the site.

A sustainable garden community would have a secondary school at its heart. As
referred to above, it is unclear to SCDC whether a development capped at 3,300
homes by the capacity of the local roads would be large enough to support a
secondary school or that its provision would be viable and so deliverable. This would
be important for the consistency of the NUGC proposal with the social and place
making policies of the NPPF to be demonstrated. The timing of delivery and
implications for existing secondary schools in the area, including on South
Cambridgeshire is not clear. SCDC is concerned that if a secondary school is not
provided early in the NUGC development some children would need to travel to
Cambridgeshire Village Colleges in Sawston and Linton (if they have any capacity to
accommaodate them), adding to the traffic on local roads especially in the morning
peak.

SCDC notes that the Uttlesford Local Plan Housing Trajectory assumes that no more
than 175 dwellings a year can be delivered at the NUGC and Easton Park Garden
Communities and 150 dwellings on Land West of Braintree. It has been said that
these rates are supported by evidence but it remains unclear at this stage what this
evidence consists of. The annual delivery rates assumed for large scale
developments that will build out beyond the plan period are an important
consideration because of their implications for overall housing delivery. NUGC is
located in a desirable location and SCDC considers it is worth questioning carefully
whether the assumed annual average completion rates are the most appropriate. The
site developers state that they can deliver homes at higher annual rates. SCDC’s own
demonstrable evidence from Cambourne shows that average rates of around 220
homes a year over several economic cycles can be justified for South
Cambridgeshire. This evidence was accepted by objectors at the South
Cambridgeshire Local Plan Examination who proposed that 250 dwellings a year
would be a reasonable assumption in relation to Northstowe, Waterbeach and Bourn
Airfield new settlements. It is also noted that the emerging Braintree Local Plan itself
allows for 250 completions per year on its portion of the Land West of Braintree
garden community site.

One implication of the build-out rate assumed for NUGC is that NUGC residents will
remain dependent for longer upon Saffron Walden and other settlements for access
to services and facilities. The Local Plan is unclear on how this impact is proposed to
be mitigated.

SCDC suggests that a reasonable alternative option which could be explored would
be to increase the delivery rate at Easton Park to 250 homes a year which could
boost delivery by 675 homes by 2033 which in combination with other alternative
sites could mean that the NUGC site would not be needed. This may not prove to be
the most appropriate strategy for the Uttlesford Local Plan but this has not yet been
demonstrated as part of evidence supporting the NUGC proposal. It could also
potentially allow for first completions on one or both of the other new settlements
proposed for first completions in 2021/2022 to be set back by a number of years to be
more realistic and in alignment with evidence from elsewhere on the time taken to get
first completions at major new settlements.

At the earliest, adoption of the Uttlesford Local Plan is not expected until Spring 2019,
and it is not clear whether any decision has yet been made whether NUGC policy

Page 29



28.

29.

SP7 will be supplemented by preparation of an Area Action Plan or a Supplementary
Planning Document (the preparation of which will take up at least a year). Whilst
some time can be saved by twin tracking planning processes there are practical
limitations to what can be achieved by doing so. SCDC is also expecting first
completions on new settlements at Bourn Airfield and Waterbeach New Town in
2021/22. However, the South Cambridgeshire Local Plan was submitted for
examination in 2014, adoption is expected in Spring 2018, the site promoters have
been in place for many years, and SPDs are already in preparation for both sites.
SCDC suggests that UDC gives further consideration to these questions and whether
it is realistic to depend upon first completions at the NUGC in 2021/2022.

If the NUGC allocation is retained in the emerging Uttlesford Local Plan moving
forward, SCDC proposes that the following changes to Policy SP7 should be
considered by UDC:

(a) Paragraph 4 - include a requirement for ‘reliable and high quality’ public
transport services and make explicit mention of Granta Park, the Babraham
Research Campus and Whittlesford Parkway Station as destinations and
employment parks.

(b) Paragraph 5 - make explicit reference to junction improvements at junction 10
on the M11, and also to improvements to the junction of the A1307 and A505
that may be required once proper consideration has been given to growth at
Haverhill and job growth in Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire. The
wording that transport contributions ‘will be sought’ is also not a clear
requirement and should be strengthened. The policy should commit to the
development mitigating its impact on these junctions, and also to the provision
of mitigation measures in villages all around the site. Paragraph 5 should also
be clear it is referring to Babraham Park & Ride.

(c) Paragraph 7 — amend to commit to providing sustainable drainage systems
which limit downstream runoff to existing greenfield rates as a minimum and
to providing appropriate betterment as a planning gain for communities
downstream.

(d) Paragraph 11 - include a policy requirement to prevent the development of
ridgelines and elevated valley sides, given that the NUGC proposal is not
supported by evidence which demonstrates that it would have an acceptable
impact on the local landscape.

SCDC intends that the above comments are constructive and helpful to UDC as it

moves forward with the emerging Local Plan, and wishes to continue to engage with
UDC during the plan making process.

Page 30



Appendix C: Extracts from the Uttlesford Regulation 19 Local Plan concerning the
NUGC

Garden Communities

3.78 Through the Local Plan the Council is making provision for three new garden communities in the
District, providing housing choice and opportunity for current and future residents. The garden
communities will be developed in accordance with garden city principles developed by the Town and
Country Planning Association. These are:

1. Land value capture for the benefit of the community;
2. Strong vision, leadership and community engagement;
3. Community ownership of land and long-term stewardship of assets;

4. Mixed-tenure homes and housing types that are genuinely affordable for everyone;
A wide range of local jobs within easy commuting distance from homes; Beautifully and
imaginatively designed homes with gardens, combining the best of town and country to create
healthy, vibrant communities and including opportunities to grow food;

5. Development that enhances the natural environment, providing a comprehensive green
infrastructure network and net biodiversity gains and using zero-carbon and energy-positive
technology to ensure climate resilience;

6. Strong cultural, recreational and shopping facilities in walkable, vibrant, sociable
neighbourhoods; and

7. Integrated and accessible transport systems, with walking, cycling and public transport designed
to be the most attractive forms of local transport.

3.79 The new garden communities will be located at Easton Park, West of Braintree and North
Uttlesford. They are shown as broad locations on the Key Diagram and the Policies Map.

3.80 Delivery of the garden communities will commence in 2022/23. Given the scale of growth these
will continue to be built beyond the Local Plan Period, i.e. after 2033, and thus also contribute towards
longer-term growth and development objectives for the district.

3.81 Policies for the garden communities are presented below. These must be read in conjunction with
policies in the Local Plan as a whole.

3.82 Development Plan Documents will be prepared for each Garden Community. Part of the role of
Garden Community Development Plan documents is to determine the full extent of land required for
each Garden Community. In order to determine the full extent of the land required it is necessary to
consider the nature of the existing area and the level of land uses and infrastructure required to serve
the Garden Community.

3.83 Options for the extent of the boundary will be considered as part of the preparation of the Garden
Community DPDs but will include:

1. Identification of clear and defensible boundaries (watercourses, roads, woodland belts);
2. Appreciation of distance and separation of communities (physical, visual and perceived);

3. Relationship to existing settlements;

Page 31



4. Nature of land that will perform the role of a ‘green buffer’ which will define an envelope within
which a new community can be accommodated and that remains distinct from other existing
settlements; and

5. Planning policy protection (how might this land be protected ‘in perpetuity’ from built development
whilst allowing complementary activities that support both the new community and existing
communities).

3.84 The effects of constraints on potential land use will be identified through consideration of the
evidence base and by engagement with landowners, statutory agencies, utility service providers and
others. Based on this process, absolute constraints on development, such as easements and buffers
to existing settlements can be defined and removed from the boundary of the Garden Community
altogether or from the developable area if they remain within the boundary. Remaining constraints,
such as areas of high landscape sensitivity will influence decisions on proposed land uses and
potential residential densities.

Policy SP 5

Garden Community Principles

Three new garden communities will be delivered in Uttlesford, at Easton Park, North Uttlesford
and West of Braintree.

The garden communities will be developed in accordance with the following garden city
principles defined by the Town and Country Planning Association and the wider definition of
sustainable development outlined in the National Planning Policy Framework.

1. Land value capture for the benefit of the community
2. Strong vision, leadership and community engagement

3. Community ownership of land and long-term stewardship of assets
Mixed-tenure homes and housing types that are genuinely affordable for everyone

4. A wide range of local jobs within easy commuting distance from homes

5. Beautifully and imaginatively designed homes with gardens, combining the best of town
and country to create healthy, vibrant communities and including opportunities to grow
food

6. Development that enhances the natural environment, providing a comprehensive green
infrastructure network and net biodiversity gains and using zero-carbon and energy-
positive technology to ensure climate resilience

7. Strong cultural, recreational and shopping facilities in walkable, vibrant, sociable
neighbourhoods

8. Integrated and accessible transport systems, with walking, cycling and public transport
designed to be the most attractive forms of local transport.

Each garden community will demonstrate high levels of self-containment.

The garden communities will be underpinned by high quality urban design and placemaking
principles. Streets and spaces will be designed to allow for safe and easy movement by a
variety of modes, balancing placemaking and movement functions. Opportunities for smarter
and sustainable travel will be maximised, with links to neighbouring settlements provided that
reduce the reliance on the private car. The development plan documents will establish the

Page 32



layout, mix and quantity of future development, including key urban design principles that will
guide development.

Prior to any planning applications being considered detailed Development Plan Documents for
each of the garden communities will be prepared and adopted by the local planning authority.

The development plan documents and subsequent planning applications must be prepared in
consultation with residents, wider stakeholders and interested parties. This consultation will
need to extend beyond the district boundaries to address cross-boundary matters.

Comprehensive development is required. Phasing, infrastructure and delivery plans will form
part of the development plan document, establishing the scale and pace of growth, where
development will take place and when. The garden communities must be built out in a logical
order so that ongoing construction does not undermine the quality of life of the first residents
to move into the garden community by separating construction access to the site from
residential access. The delivery of physical, social and green infrastructure, and the trigger
points for these, will form part of the phasing and delivery plan. The phasing of all forms of
infrastructure will meet the needs of the new community as they arise and will not exacerbate
existing problems.

Measures to support the development of each new community including the provision of
community development support workers (or other provision) and other appropriate
community governance structures will be an integral part of the delivery of each new garden
community.

The Council is confident that the new garden communities can be delivered. The exact delivery
model for each garden community will be determined separately from the land-use planning
process, however the Council will need to be satisfied that any proposed delivery model will
realise all the garden city principles and a test will be established in the Development Plan
Document to enable this to be determined. Delivery models could range from privately led
arrangements to locally-led development corporations with compulsory purchase powers. If
necessary, the Council will consider intervening directly to ensure the garden city principles
are met within the proposed timetable set out within the Local Plan.

The Development Plan Document for each Garden Community will set out the criteria that the
Council will need to be sure are satisfied in relation to the delivery model for that development.
The criteria will be designed to ensure, for example, that the development will meet garden city
principles and will secure the delivery of housing throughout market cycles.

North Uttlesford Garden Community

3.94 North Uttlesford Garden Community is located in the north west of the District. It adjoins the
northern boundary of the district with South Cambridgeshire. It has the potential to deliver 5,000 new
homes, local employment opportunities, supporting social and community infrastructure. It is
anticipated that housing delivery will commence in 2022/23 and continue beyond the Local Plan
period.

3.95 A Development Plan Document (DPD) will be prepared for the garden community and adopted by
the Local Planning Authority. The DPD will set out the development framework against which any
planning applications for the garden community will be considered. The DPD will be a detailed and
site-specific document for the North Uttlesford Garden Community. In addition to the DPD, a local
economic strategy will be established for North Uttlesford Garden Community.

3.96 This Local Plan sets out the principle of development at North Uttlesford within a broad area of
search and identifies the form of the development, i.e. the type of land uses, the scale of development
and the overall timing of the development. This Plan also sets out specific infrastructure that the
garden community must provide and identifies other requirements that the development must meet.
These requirements are based on the evidence available at this time. More detailed site-specific
evidence will be prepared as part of the preparation of the DPD and will refine the content of this Plan.
Evidence has already been collected to inform this Plan in relation to infrastructure, through the
preparation of the Infrastructure Delivery Plan, and constraints to development through analysis of a
range of evidence including specific studies.

Page 33



3.97 The Landscape and Visual Appraisal finds that land at North Uttlesford is of high landscape and
visual sensitivity, given its steeply sloping landform and elevated position; its open fields and its limited
vegetation structure; and the potential for long distance cross-valley views into the Site. The Heritage
Impact Assessment concludes that development of the North Uttlesford site has the potential to harm
the significance of heritage assets on the site and surrounding the site. There is also evidence of
significant buried archaeology on the site and in the wider area. The HIA concludes there is some
scope for development of the site and suggests measures for avoiding and mitigating harm to the
significance. The policy wording for North Uttlesford includes appropriate wording to mitigate
landscape and heritage impacts.

3.98 The detailed Water Cycle Study (April 2018) found no showstoppers preventing timely delivery of
at least one feasible technical solution for this Garden Community by upgrading the impacted
Wastewater Recycling Centre (WRC) infrastructure.

3.99 A step change increase in sustainable travel modes will be expected with the aim to achieve
significant use of sustainable transport, with trips by active modes and public transport making up 60%
of all trips. The DPD will set detailed targets for this Garden Community for Active Modes, and Rapid
Transit and the policies/measures for achieving these.

3.100 The strategy for the development will ensure the All is the preferred route for northbound travel,
this is to minimise impacts on the A505. This strategy should explore the possibility of a northbound
access to the old A1l and onwards to Granta Park and the proposed new Park and Ride in this
vicinity. A northbound public transport, walking and cycling link to this destination has the opportunity
to deliver considerable benefits to the scheme.

3.101 The proposed developer funded highway improvements could accommodate up to 3,300 new
homes at North Uttlesford which would be expected to come forward in the first 15 -17 years of
development. Development beyond that level would depend upon strategic highway improvements
such as dualling of the A505 between M11 and A1l junctions. It is proposed that beyond the end of the
plan period, a cap of 3,300 new homes is placed on any allocation at North Uttlesford Garden
Community to ensure that development over this figure does not take place until strategic highway
improvements have been implemented.

Policy SP 7
North Uttlesford Garden Community

Permission will be granted for a new garden community in North Uttlesford of 5,000 homes. The
details and final number of homes will be set out in a Strategic Growth Development Plan
Document.

The Strategic Growth Development Plan Document will set out the nature and form of the new
community. The DPD will be produced in consultation with stakeholders and will include a
concept plan showing the disposition and quantity of future land-uses, and give three
dimensional indication of the urban design and landscape parameters which will be
incorporated into any future planning applications; together with a phasing and implementation
strategy which sets out how the rate of development will be linked to the necessary social and
physical infrastructure to ensure that the respective phases of the development do not come
forward until the necessary infrastructure has been secured.

The DPD will provide the framework for the subsequent development of more detailed
masterplans and other design and planning guidance for the North Uttlesford Garden
Community. The DPD will set out mitigation measures relating to the criteria and text of this
policy. Planning applications will be consistent with the approved DPD which will need to be in
place before any consent is granted for the new Garden Community.

The new Garden Community in North Uttlesford will:

Land Uses

Page 34



Deliver 5,000 new dwellings to the North-East of the B184, of which 1,925 will be delivered
by 2033. A mix of housing sizes and types of housing will be delivered in accordance with
housing needs including 40% affordable homes and homes for older people, including
residential care and nursing home accommodation. Specific provision will be made for
self and custom build housing.

Deliver a range of local employment opportunities integrated into the new community,
with a particular focus on maximising economic links to the Wellcome Genome Campus
and Chesterford ResearchPark and other nearby centres of employment. The
development will be informed by the Uttlesford Economic Development Strategy for North
Uttlesford and will be phased in line with the residential elements of the development.
Floorspace allocations to be defined within the Strategic Growth Development Plan
Document.

Include a new local centre incorporating a mix of retail, business and community uses
(including A1, A2, A3, A4, A5, Bl(a), D1 and D2 uses(“)). Deliver appropriate civic
buildings at the heart of the community, for example a town hall. Land and financial
contributions towards four primary schools and one secondary school will be provided.
Early years and childcare facilities, community and youth facilities will also be provided.
Increased primary healthcare capacity will be provided to serve the new development as
appropriate. This may be by means of new infrastructure or improvement, reconfiguration,
extension or relocation of existing medical facilities.

Provide allotments, open space, sports facilities, play, leisure and recreation in line with
standards established in the Local Plan and the Essex Design Guide and the Strategic
Growth Development Plan Document.

Provide natural, semi-natural and amenity green space in accordance with standards
established in the Local Plan and the Essex Design Guide and the Strategic Growth
Development Plan Document.

Transport

6.

Incorporate, from the early delivery phase of the garden community, a package of
measures to provide transport choice,including the delivery of highquality,frequent and
fast public transport services to Saffron Walden, Cambridge, Whittlesford Rail Station,
Audley End Rail Station, Great Chesterford Rail Station and nearby employment
parks(including the Wellcome Genome Campus and Chesterford Research Park). A
network of direct, high quality, safe walking and cycling routes will also be provided to
enhance permeability within the site and to access nearby employment areas, transport
hubs and communities, including linking the existing cycle path from Hinxton to Saffron
Walden and linking to Great Chesterford Rail Station via the PROW adjoining Great
Chesterford to the North-West of Jackson’s Lane.

Deliver other specific transport-related infrastructure requirements identified through the
Development Plan Document in a phased manner.

Mitigate the transport impacts of the proposed development on the strategic and local
road network including on the B184 and B1383. An access strategy that connects with the
All, A1301 and the Cambridge Park & Ride (on the A1307), with the All being the
preferred route for northbound travel. The access strategy will explore the potential of a
northern access for the site The primary southern access into the site will be via Field
Farm Drive, access via Park Road will be limited to ensure the character of Park Road is
protected. There will be no vehicular access to the site from Cow Lane. Access for
construction traffic will be via Field Farm Drive. Contributions towards capacity
improvements along the A505 and junction of the A505 and A1301 will be sought,
requiring cross boundary agreement with South Cambridgeshire District Council,
Hertfordshire, Cambridgeshire, Essex County Councils and Highways England. Other
specific transport related infrastructure requirements identified through the Strategic
Growth Development Plan Document and masterplans for the Garden Community will be
delivered in a phased manner. The development will avoid the use of unsuitable roads by
car through existing communities.

Page 35


http://uttlesford-consult.limehouse.co.uk/portal/planning_policy/local_plan_2018/udc_reg_19?pointId=s1523028792312#target-d545824e2810

Historic Environment

1. Positively respond to the landscape and historic value of this location, with proposals
accompanied and influenced by landscape/ visual and heritage impact assessments.
Careful consideration will be given to the siting and design of development, the use of
building and landscaping materials, the improvement and restoration of degraded
landscape features, and new woodland/ tree belt and structural planting within and around
the site. The sense of tranquillity within the site should be maintained.

2. Proposals Shall:

a.Respond positively to the landscape character and significance of the historic
environment, including designated and non-designated heritage assets.

b.Conserve, and where appropriate enhance, the significance of heritage assets and
their settings both within the site and the wider area including The Roman Temple
(scheduled monument) and Park Farmhouse (Grade Il listed) and the Roman Town
and Fort (both scheduled monuments).

c.Be informed by appropriate landscape/visual and heritage impact assessments, the
latter to include the results of archaeological field evaluation as required by the
Local Authority.

3. Conserve and where appropriate enhance the significance of heritage assets and their
settings both within the site and the wider area Where mitigation is required, measures
will have regard to the HIA and include:

a. Density, scale, form, materials of new development against existing in the area;
b. Existing boundaries, routes reflected in new development; and

c. Appropriateness and working with the topography and geology when planning buffer
zones.

4. Conserve and where appropriate enhance the significance of heritage assets and their
settings, both within the site and in the wider area. Where mitigation is required, measures
will have regard to the HIA and include:

a. Reinforce screening where appropriate along site boundaries;

b.Provide soft transition zones around the boundaries of the deer park, open tree
screens and ditches. This is particularly important along the northern boundary of
the deer park which abuts the County boundary and Hildersham Wood, an area of
ancient woodland;

c. The creation of buffer zones incorporating areas of open land;
d. Consider development on the lower slopes to reduce visual impact;
e.Protect the Scheduled Monument onsite and its setting;

f. Retain visual and historic association between the Roman Temple and the Roman
Town;

g.Detailed design informed by archaeology investigations of the site this may involve
evaluations, geo physical surveys or trenching; and

h.As far as possible retain the character of existing historic routes through the site,
narrow lanes and mature tree lines.

Page 36



Natural Environment

13.

14.

15.

16.

Careful consideration will be afforded to the improvement and restoration of degraded
landscape features, and new woodland / tree belt and structural planting within and
around the site. The sense of tranquillity within the site should be maintained.

Protect the separate identity of the nearby community of Great Chesterford as an existing
community close to but separate from North Uttlesford Garden Community. The nature of
the transition between North Uttlesford and the nearby existing community of Great
Chesterford will be an important element of the design of the new Garden Community and
the development will provide a strategic landscaped buffer.

Enhance wider green infrastructure and networks including maintenance and
enhancement of existing watercourses, ponds and lakes within the site.

Careful consideration will be afforded to the improvement and restoration of degraded
landscape features, and new woodland / tree belt and structural planting within and
around the site. The sense of tranquillity within the site should be maintained.

Utilities

17.

18.

19.

20.

Ultrafast broadband will be provided throughout the Garden Community and homes will
include specific spaces to enable working from home.

Enhance the water recycling centre at Great Chesterford, new connections, network
upgrades and reinforcements to the sewerage network. The delivery of smart, innovative
and sustainable water efficiency/re-use solutions that fosters climate resilience and a 21st
century approach towards water supply. Provision of improvements to waste water
treatment and off-site drainage improvements aligned with the phasing of the
development within the plan period and that proposed post 2033.

Provide Sustainable Urban Drainage systems to provide water quality, amenity and
ecological benefits as well as flood reduction whilst ensuring that there is no harm to
nationally important archaeological assets whether scheduled or not.

Include new network or primary substations in the medium to long term, and
reinforcements to the energy network in the shorter term to meet the needs of the
development.

Governance and Stewardship

21.

Establishment at an early stage in the development of the Garden Community of
appropriate and sustainable long-term governance ad stewardship arrangements for
community assets including green spaces, public realm areas and community and other
relevant facilities; such arrangements to be funded by the development and include
community representation to ensure residents have a stake in the long term development,
stewardship and management of their community.

Page 37



This page is left blank intentionally.



South
Cambridgeshire
District Council

REPORT TO: Scrutiny and Overview Committee 12 July 2018
LEAD OFFICER: Executive Director (Corporate Services)

WORK PROGRAMME
Purpose

To provide the Scrutiny and Overview Committee with an opportunity to plan its work
programme for future meetings.

Recommendations

It is recommended that the draft Work Programme attached at Appendix A is
reviewed and approved subject to any amendments put forward at the meeting.

Background

The latest version of the Committee’s work programme is attached at Appendix A.
Members are encouraged to suggest items or topics for potential consideration at
future meetings.

The Council’s latest draft Notice of Key and Non Key Decisions is attached at
Appendix B. Further items for future consideration may be identified from this.

Considerations
The four principles of effective scrutiny

The Centre for Public Scrutiny works towards four principles of good scrutiny, these
being:

e to provide ‘critical friend’ challenge to executive policy-makers and decision-
makers;

¢ to enable the voice and concerns of the public and its communities;

¢ that scrutiny be carried out by ‘independent minded governors’ who lead and own
the scrutiny process;

e to drive improvement.

Members are asked to give due consideration to these principles when carrying out
their role on the Scrutiny and Overview Committee.

Implications
In the writing of this report, taking into account financial, legal, staffing, risk

management, equality and diversity, climate change, community safety and any other
key issues, there are no significant implications.

Page 39



Effect on Strategic Aims

We will listen to and engage with residents, parishes and businesses to ensure
we deliver first class services and value for money

The Scrutiny and Overview Committee will contribute to this strategic aim as it
challenges decision takers and holds them to account as part of its deliberations.

Report Author: Victoria Wallace — Democratic Services Officer
Telephone: (01954) 713026

Page 40



Tt obed

Appendix A

Scrutiny and Overview Committee — Draft Work Programme 2018/19

Meeting date

Items for detailed further
analysis and
recommendation

Item for consideration

Guests

Output

Every meeting

All Key Decision items prior to

Relevant Portfolio Holder and

Cabinet lead officers
Selected Non-Key Decision items Relevant Portfolio Holder and
prior to Cabinet lead officers

August 2018

Recruitment and Retention
(planning priority)

Head of Joint Planning
Head of People and
Organisational
Development

September 2018
onwards

Priority project for
September 2018 onwards
to be selected from these
options:

Rural Crime

Parish Council Chairmen
of affected parishes
Individuals/companies
impacted

Police and Crime
Commissioner

Local Superintendent

Report from
Committee including
recommendations for
Cabinet

Traveller Issues

Traveller Liaison Officer
Planning Enforcement
Environmental Health
Police

Traveller Representative
NHS

Education Department

Report from
Committee
compilation including
recommendations for
Cabinet

Planning Performance

Developers
Business Leaders
Joint Head of Planning




This page is left blank intentionally.



Appendix B

NOTICE OF KEY DECISIONS

To be taken under the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information)

(England) Regulations 2012 from 3 July 2018 Salfth

Cambridgeshire
District Council

Notice is hereby given of:

e Key decisions that will be taken by Cabinet, individual Portfolio Holders or Officers
e Confidential or exempt executive decisions that will be taken in a meeting from which the public will be excluded (for whole or part)

A Key Decision is a decision, which is likely:

(1) (a) to result in the authority incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the
service or function to which the decision relates; or

;';b) to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards

(@)
(2XDdn determining the meaning of “significant’ for the purposes of the above, the Council must have regard to any guidance for the time being issued by
c%]e Secretary of State in accordance with section 9Q of the 2000 Act (guidance).

A notice / agenda, together with reports and supporting documents for each meeting will be published at least five working days before the date of the
meeting. In order to enquire about the availability of documents and subject to any restriction on their disclosure, copies may be requested from
Democratic Services, South Cambridgeshire District Council, South Cambridgeshire Hall, Cambourne Business Park, Cambourne, Cambridge, CB23
6EA. Agenda and documents may be accessed electronically at www.scambs.gov.uk

Formal notice is hereby given under the above Regulations that, where indicated (in column 4), part of the meetings listed in this notice may be held in
private because the agenda and reports for the meeting will contain confidential or exempt information under Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) and that the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in
disclosing it. See overleaf for the relevant paragraphs.

If you have any queries relating to this Notice, please contact
Victoria Wallace on 01954 713026 or by e-mailing Victoria.Wallace @scambs.gov.uk



http://www.scambs.gov.uk/
mailto:Victoria.Wallace@scambs.gov.uk

Paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
(Reason for areport to be considered in private)

1. Information relating to any individual

2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual

3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information)

4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations
matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the authority

5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings

6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes:

(a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a person; or
(b) to make an Order or Direction under any enactment
7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime

ThaDecision Makers referred to in this document are as follows:

jab)
C%i net

Coﬁncillor Bridget Smith Leader of the Council

Councillor Aidan Van de Weyer Deputy Leader

Councillor John Williams Finance

Councillor Hazel Smith Housing

Councillor Neil Gough Environmental Services and Licensing
Councillor Tumi Hawkins Planning

Councillor Philippa Hart Customer Services and Business Improvement



Appendix B

Key and non-key decisions expected to be made from 3 July 2018

Decision to be made

Decision Maker

Date of Meeting

Reason for Report to
be considered in
Private

Portfolio Holder and
Contact Officer

Documents submitted
to the decision maker

Write off of outstanding | Council 19 July 2018 Finance Portfolio Report (publication
debts Holder expected 18 July 2018)
Key Alex Colyer, Executive

Director
Update on South Cabinet 26 July 2018 Planning Portfolio Report (publication
Cambridgeshire District Holder expected 18 July 2018)
Cowgcil's Statement of
Cammunity Caroline Hunt, Planning
Inbglvement and the Policy Manager
Nejghbourhood Plan
D ion Making
Process
Non-Key
Waterbeach New Town | Cabinet 26 July 2018 Planning Portfolio Report (publication
Supplementary Holder expected 18 July 2018)
Planning Document for
Public Consultation Caroline Hunt, Planning

Policy Manager
Non-Key
Response to the Cabinet 26 July 2018 Planning Portfolio Report (publication

Uttlesford Local Plan
pre-submission
consultation

Holder

Caroline Hunt, Planning

expected 18 July 2018)




Key and non-key decisions expected to be made from 3 July 2018

Decision to be made

Decision Maker

Date of Meeting

Reason for Report to
be considered in
Private

Portfolio Holder and
Contact Officer

Documents submitted
to the decision maker

Policy Manager

Non-Key
Energy Company Cabinet 26 July 2018 Environmental Services | Report (publication
Obligation Flexible and Licensing Portfolio | expected 18 July 2018)
Eligibility (ECO Flex) Holder
Non-Key Gemma Barron, Head
of Sustainable
Communities and
U Wellbeing
Q
(e
)
Neps Build Scheme at Cabinet In the month of July Part or all of the report | Housing Portfolio
HaFBwick 2018 may be exempt by Holder
virtue of paragraph 3 of
Key Part 1 of Schedule 12A | Gill Anderton, Head of
of the Local Housing (New Build)
Government Act 1972
Appointment of Brexit Cabinet 26 July 2018 Leader of Council Report (publication

Advisory Group

Non-Key

Kathrin John,
Democratic Services
Team Leader

expected 18 July 2018)

1-3 Willingham Green,
Brinkley

Key

Housing Portfolio
Holder

In the month of July
2018

Part or all of the report
may be exempt by
virtue of paragraph 3 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A

Housing Portfolio
Holder

Anita Goddard,

Report (publication in
July 2018)




Key and non-key decisions expected to be made from 3 July 2018

Decision to be made

Decision Maker

Date of Meeting

Reason for Report to
be considered in
Private

Portfolio Holder and
Contact Officer

Documents submitted
to the decision maker

of the Local
Government Act 1972

Housing Operational
Services Manager

Preparing for 2018 and
beyond task and finish

group

Customer Service and
Business Improvement
Portfolio Holder

In the month of July
2018

Customer Service and
Business Improvement
Portfolio Holder

Report (publication
expected in July 2018)

Key Susan Gardner Craig,
Head of People and
Organisational
o Development
Q
Q

D ,
No&Domestlc Rates

Finance Portfolio

In the month of July

Finance Portfolio

Report (publication in

Disgyetionary Relief Holder 2018 Holder July 2018)
Policy - Revaluation
Relief Katie Brown, Revenues
Manager
Key
Orchard Park Cabinet 05 September 2018 Part or all of the report | Finance and Staffing Report (publication

Feasibility Study

Key

may be exempt by
virtue of paragraph 3 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local
Government Act 1972

Portfolio Holder

David Ousby, Housing
Development Officer
(Growth)

Alex Colyer, Executive
Director

expected 28 August
2018)




Key and non-key decisions expected to be made from 3 July 2018

Decision to be made

Decision Maker

Date of Meeting

Reason for Report to
be considered in
Private

Portfolio Holder and
Contact Officer

Documents submitted
to the decision maker

Future Maintenance Cabinet 05 September 2018 Environmental Services | Report (publication
Mare Fen and Licensing Portfolio | expected 28 August
Holder 2018)
Key
Paul Quigley, Head of
Environment
Commissioning
Community Chest Cabinet 05 September 2018 Gemma Barron, Head Report (publication
Crifdria of Sustainable expected 28 August
% Communities and 2018)
Nom-Key Wellbeing
I
oo
3 Year Service Support | Cabinet 05 September 2018 Siobhan Mellon, Report (publication
Grants Criteria Development Officer expected 28 August
2018(
Non-Key
Quarterly Position Cabinet 28 June 2018 Customer Service and | Report (publication
Report Business Improvement | expected 28 August
Portfolio Holder 2018)
Non-Key
Cabinet 7 November 2018 Richard May, Policy Report (publication
and Performance expected 30 October
Manager 2018)
Adoption of Recycling Cabinet 05 September 2018 Environmental Services | Report (publication

and Waste Operational
Policies

and Licensing Portfolio
Holder

expected 28 August
2018)




Key and non-key decisions expected to be made from 3 July 2018

Decision to be made

Decision Maker

Date of Meeting

Reason for Report to
be considered in
Private

Portfolio Holder and
Contact Officer

Documents submitted
to the decision maker

Key

Trevor Nicoll, Head of
Waste Resources

Cambourne High Street | Cabinet 05 September 2018 Part or all of the report | Finance Portfolio Report (publication
may be exempt by Holder expected 28 August
Key virtue of paragraph 3 of 2018)
Part 1 of Schedule 12A | Alex Colyer, Executive
of the Local Director
Government Act 1972
U . . : -
Camipulsory Purchase | Cabinet 05 September 2018 Planning Portfolio Report (publication
Orger of The Tree, Holder expected 18 July 2018)
Sta_'gleford Council 27 September 2018 Kathryn Hawkes, Report (publication
O Partnerships Officer expected 19
Non-Key September 2018)
Great Abington former | Cabinet Anticipated in Summer Planning Portfolio Report (publication
LSA Estate 2018 Holder date tbc)
Neighbourhood Plan
Council Anticipated in Autumn Jennifer Nuttycombe,
Non-Key 2018 Senior Planning Policy
Officer
Community Energy Cabinet 03 October 2018 Report (publication

Grants Criteria

Non-Key

Gemma Barron, Head
of Sustainable
Communities and
Wellbeing

expected 25
September 2018)




Key and non-key decisions expected to be made from 3 July 2018

Decision to be made

Decision Maker

Date of Meeting

Reason for Report to
be considered in
Private

Portfolio Holder and
Contact Officer

Documents submitted
to the decision maker

Assets of Community Cabinet 03 October 2018 Report (publication
Value Process expected 25
Kathryn Hawkes, September 2018)
Non-Key Partnerships Officer
Rural Settlements List | Cabinet 07 November 2018 Finance Portfolio Report (publication
Holder expected 30 October
Non-Key 2018)
Katie Brown, Revenues
U Manager
Q
(e
)
Localised Council Tax | Cabinet 07 November 2018 Finance Portfolio Report (publication
Support Scheme Holder expected 30 October
2018)
Non-Key Dawn Graham, Benefits
Cabinet 06 February 2019 Manager Report (publication
exepcted 29 January
2018)
Licensing Act Policy Council 29 November 2018 Environmental Services | Report (publication
and Licensing Portfolio | expected 21 November
Non-Key Holder 2018)
Gambling Act Policy Council 29 November 2018 Environmental Services | Report (publication

Non-Key

and Licensing Portfolio
Holder

expected 21 November
2018)




Key and non-key decisions expected to be made from 3 July 2018

Decision to be made

Decision Maker

Date of Meeting

Reason for Report to
be considered in
Private

Portfolio Holder and
Contact Officer

Documents submitted
to the decision maker

Mike Hill, Health and
Environmental Services
Director

Non-Domestic Rates
Discretionary Relief
Policy Review

Non-Key

Cabinet

May 2019

Finance Portfolio
Holder

Katie Brown, Revenues
Manager

Report (publication
date thc)

TG obed




This page is left blank intentionally.



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	5 Scrutiny and Overview Committee's Outline Working Agreement
	6 Response to consultation on Pre-Submission Draft Uttlesford Local Plan (Reg 19)
	7 Work programme
	App A - Scrutiny Work Programme 201819
	App B - Notice of Key decisions July 2018


